
 
 
 
 
 

 

1800 12th Street | PO Box 2004 | Cayce SC 29171 
P 803 796 9020 | F 803 796 9072 

caycesc.gov 

Mayor 
Elise Partin 

Mayor Pro-Tem Council Members City Manager Assistant City Manager 
James E. Jenkins Phil Carter Tracy Hegler 

Ann Bailey-Robinson 
Tim James 

James E. Crosland 

City of Cayce 
Regular Council Meeting 

Tuesday, August 3, 2021, 6 p.m.   
Cayce City Council is currently meeting virtually via Zoom.  

Please use one of the following methods to attend the Council Meeting: 
 

Virtual Attendance, click 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81399628003?pwd=YkwzSmdHZ3ZzbnM3aW1lSU1uaDhwZz09 

or 
Telephone: 1-929-205-6099   
Meeting ID: 813 9962 8003  

Passcode: 743589  
caycesc.gov  

 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

A.   Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
 

B. Approval of Minutes  
  July 14, 2021 Regular Meeting 
  
II. Public Comment Regarding Items on the Agenda 

 
Special Note: Anyone wishing to speak to Council about an item not on the agenda will 
need to call the City Clerk at 803-550-9557 by 12:00 p.m. the Friday prior to the Council 
Meeting.  Anyone wishing to speak on an item on the Agenda will need to call the City 
Clerk at 803-550-9557 by 12:00 p.m. the day of the Council Meeting.   

 
         
III. Ordinances and Resolutions   
 

A.      Discussion and Approval of Ordinance 2021-17 Amending Zoning Map and 
     Rezoning Split Zoned Property Located at 1204 Knox Abbott Drive  
     (TMS# 004633-06-009) from RS-3 (Single Family Residential) and C-4 (Highway 
     Commercial) to C-4 (Highway Commercial) – Second Reading  
 

B.      Consideration and Approval of Resolution Declaring Filing Dates for Candidacy   
     for Municipal Elections 
 

C.      Consideration and Approval of Resolution Approving Financing Terms for General 
     Fund Vehicle Lease Purchases  
                 

IV. Discussion Items 
 

A.      Discussion and Approval of Bid Award for Professional Auditing Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81399628003?pwd=YkwzSmdHZ3ZzbnM3aW1lSU1uaDhwZz09


B.      Discussion and Bid Award for Public Safety Fire Ladder Truck 
  

C.       Discussion and Approval Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into an     
                       Agreement with Synovus Bank for a Purchasing Card 

 
V. City Manager’s Report 

     
VI. Committee Matters 

 
A.       Approval to enter the following Committee approved Minutes into the City’s  

Record 
Museum Commission – April 7, 2021 
Cayce Housing Authority – April 13, 2021 
Museum Commission – May 5, 2021 
Events Committee – June 10, 2021 
 

B.       Reappointments 
   Standard Technical Codes Board of Appeals – Two (2) Positions  

 
VII. Council Comments 
 
VIII. Executive Session 
 

A. Receipt of legal advice relating to claims and potential claims by and against the 
City and other matters covered by the attorney-client privilege 
 

IX. Reconvene  
 
X. Possible Actions by Council in follow up to Executive Session 

 
XI. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SPECIAL NOTE:  Upon request, the City of Cayce will provide this document in whatever 
form necessary for the physically challenged or impaired. 



ITEM I. B. 

































Memorandum
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Mayor and Council 

Tracy Hegler, City Manager 
Wade Luther, Planning & Development Director 

July 27, 2021 

Second Reading of an Ordinance to rezone a split zoned property from RS-3 Single 
Family Residential.  The property is located at 1204 Knox Abbott Drive (TMS 
004633-06-009). The property is located in the Knox Abbott Drive Design Overlay 
District.  

Issue 
Council approval is needed for the Second Reading of an Ordinance to rezone a split zoned property from 
C-4/RS-3 to C-4. The property is located at the 1204 Knox Abbott Drive. The property is located in the
Knox Abbott Drive Design Overlay District.

Discussion 
The applicant requests to rezone the property to be used as C-4 Highway Commercial.  Currently the 
property is split zoned C-4 and RS-3.  The property necessitates rezoning in order to use the entire parcel 
for commercial use. The subject property is a through lot and has frontage along Knox Abbott Drive and 
H Avenue.  Knox Abbott Drive is a major commercial thoroughfare for the City of Cayce and H Avenue is 
a residential area. 

The requested re-zoning is in compliance with the Zoning Ordinance and is permitted as a compatible 
zoning district according to the criteria of the Future Land Use Map. 

The Planning Commission met on June 21, 2021, to hear public comment and to vote on whether it 
recommends the requested rezoning.  Eleven (11) people were present to speak against the rezoning 
request.  Eight (8) of the speakers live on H Avenue. Others live in different parts in the City and outside 
of the City. A letter from an H Avenue resident was also read to speak against the request. The 
comments from the public included matters such as: 

• The residents in the area state a buffer yard from 1964 exists to prohibit commercial
development on a section of the subject property;

• A restaurant business will cause increased traffic on H Avenue if a driveway is allowed;
• A restaurant business will increase the amount of rodents from garbage dumpsters;
• Light Pollution and noise will be an issue; and
• Increased crime in the area will result from the development.

Recommendation 
The Planning Commission decided by a count of 4 to 3 to deny the recommendation to Council to approve 
First Reading of an Ordinance to re-zone the subject property located at 1204 Knox Abbott Drive. The 
reasons to deny the recommendation included matters such as:  

• Rezoning the property would create an incongruent lot for the area;
• The fact that the Planning Commission cannot require a buffer yard different than the Zoning

Ordinance creates a lack of assurance that the residential area would remain protected from
commercial use;

ITEM III. A. 



• Felt the application was deficient; and
• Required more time to research the concerns of the neighborhood.

Reasons from Planning Commission members in favor of the rezoning request included: 
• The City’s ordinance has good standards and the required buffer yard in the zoning ordinance is

sufficient;
• Any deed restrictions, if there are any, can supersede zoning regulations; and
• The area is at presently occupied by commercial uses.



1 

WHEREAS, the Owner/Applicant requested that the City of Cayce amend the Zoning Map to 
re-designate the split zoned property comprising and shown at 1204 Knox Abbott Drive (TMS 004633-
06-009), now zoned C-4 Highway Commercial and RS-3 Single Family Residential to C-4, Highway
Commercial, and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on this request to receive 
comments from the public and adjacent property owners, and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met on June 21, 2021, to receive public comments and 
vote on whether to recommend the rezoning request, and has decided, by a majority vote of  four (4) 
to three (3), that it does not recommend this change to the existing zoning amendment,    

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Cayce, in 
Council, duly assembled, that the property hereinafter listed, and as shown on the attached sketch, is 
hereby rezoned and reclassified on the Zoning Map of the City of Cayce as C-4 Highway Commercial: 

Tax Map Number 004633-06-009 
1204 Knox Abbott Drive 

This Ordinance shall be effective from the date of second reading approval by Council. 

DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this ______ day of _________2021. 

   ______________________________ 
   Elise Partin, Mayor 

Attest: 

______________________________ 
Mendy Corder, CMC, Municipal Clerk 

First Reading: _____________________ 

Second Reading and Adoption: ____________ 

Approved as to form:     __________________________ 
      Danny C. Crowe, City Attorney 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
) 

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) 
) 

CITY OF CAYCE ) 

ORDINANCE 2021-17 
Amending the Zoning Map and Rezoning 
a Split Zoned Property Located at 1204 
Knox Abbott Drive (Tax Map Number 
004633-06-009) from C-4 and RS-3 to C-4 

ITEM III. A. 



C-1

RS-3

RS-3

C-4

C-1

C-4

C-4

H Ave

12th St

Knox Abbott Dr
13th St

Re-Zoning Request MA003-21
1204 Knox Abbott Drive

Existing Zoning

±200 0 200100 Feet

Legend
200'  Buffer

Re-Zoning Request 1204 Knox Abbott Dr

ITEM III. A. 



CBR

W E S T   
C O L U M B I A 

CBR

RC

TA

H Ave

12th St

Knox Abbott Dr
13th St

Re-Zoning Request MA003-21
1204 Knox Abbott Drive

Land Use Map

±200 0 200100 Feet

Legend
200'  Buffer

Re-Zoning Request 1204 Knox Abbott Dr

LAND_USE
CBI

CBR

PMU

RA

RC

RD

TA

ITEM III. A. 



ITEM III. A. 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) RESOLUTION 
) Declaring Filing Dates for Candidacy for 

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) Municipal Elections  
) 

CITY OF CAYCE ) 

WHEREAS, an election for Councilmembers for Council Districts 1 and 3 is 
scheduled to be held on November 2, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to advise the public of the opening and closing dates 
for the filing by any candidate for such office of a statement of candidacy; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by Mayor and Council of the City of 
Cayce, in Council duly assembled, that: 

(A) Filing for candidates for election for Councilmembers for Council Districts
1 and 3 is declared to be open at 8 a.m. August 23, 2021.

(B) Filing for candidates for election will be closed at 5 p.m. on September 3,
2021.

ADOPTED this ______ day of August, 2021. 

_________________________  
Elise Partin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________  
Mendy C. Corder, Municipal Clerk 

First reading and adoption:  August ____, 2021 

Approved as to form:  ______________________________ 
   Danny C. Crowe, City Attorney 

ITEM III. B. 



PUBLIC NOTICE 
CITY OF CAYCE 

GENERAL ELECTION 
The Municipal Election Commission of the City of Cayce announces the General Election for 
the City of Cayce to be Tuesday, November 2, 2021. 

The following offices shall be included in this election: 

Councilmember District #1 - term expiring 11-2-21 
Councilmember District #3 - term expiring 11-2-21 

Precincts are as follows: 

Emmanuel Church – Emmanuel Lutheran Church, 2491 Emmanuel Church Rd. 
(Hunters Mill subdivision) 
Cayce #1 – American Legion Hall, 402 Naples Ave. 
Cayce #2 – Edwards Memorial Presbyterian Church, 1600 Summerland Dr.  
Cayce #3 – Cayce United Methodist Church, 1600 12th St. 
Cayce #2A – New Bridge Academy, 2305 Frink St. 

People desiring to vote in the upcoming election must be registered by October 3, 2021.  
To register, one must contact the County Board of Voter Registration. 

Citizens desiring to be candidates for one of the above listed offices must file a Statement of 
Candidacy at Lexington County Election and Registrations office, 605 W, Main St., Suite C., 
Lexington, SC 29072 and pay the appropriate fee.  The fee for the office of Councilmember is 
$50.00.  

Statement of Economic Interest and Campaign Disclosure file according to Ethics requirement. 

Books are open for filing beginning 8:00 a.m., August 23, 2021 and remain open during 
regular business hours until 5:00 p.m., September 3, 2021.   

This is a nonpartisan election and no party affiliation shall be placed on the ballot. 

The polls shall be open at 7:00 a.m. on Election Day and close at 7:00 p.m.  At 9:00 a.m. on 
said Election Day the poll managers will begin examination of the absentee ballot return 
envelopes.  This examination will be held at the Lexington County Election and Registrations 
Office. 

On Thursday, November 4, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. at the Lexington County Election and 
Registrations Office, the Municipal Election Commission will hold a hearing to determine the 
validity of ballots challenged in this election. 

The City operates under the non-partisan plurality method authorized by State Code Sec. 5-15-
61.

ITEM III. B. 



2021 ELECTION DEADLINES 

Two offices:  Council Member District 1 (Tim James) and Council Member District 3 (Ann Bailey 
Robinson) 

Action  Deadline 

 Review Election Laws and Update Ordinances Now 

 Declare Election Open beginning Aug 23 at Council Meeting August 3, Council Mtg 
   (Resolution) - 90 days prior to election 

 Prepare and send press release announcing election open Wk of August 16 

 Prepare and place Public Notice in Newspaper (1st notice) August 5 
To run August 5 

 Public Notice in Newspaper (2 weeks after 1st notice) August 19 
To run August 19 

 Deadline for filing September 3 at 5pm 

 Copy of Candidates Roster, Statement of Econ Interest, copies of September 3 
Statement of Candidacy forms, SEI form and SEI Confirmation sheets  
forwarded to County Board of Voter Registration and Chair of Cayce MEC 

 Original Candidates Roster, Statement of Econ Interest, copies of  September 3 
Statement of Candidacy forms, SEI form and SEI Confirmation sheets 
forwarded to State Ethics Comm 

 Once ok received from Ethics Comm, send letter to candidates Ethics Comm 
advising they have been approved to be placed on the ballot 

 Contact MEC to confirm their commitment September 10 

 Place notice of MEC meetings on city web site and outside board As needed 

 Hold MEC Meeting  Wk of Oct 4 

 Election Day November 2 

 MEC to meet with County Election Commission to declare results November 4 

 File results with County Clerk November 4 

ITEM III. B. 



Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council 

From: Tracy L Hegler, City Manager 
Kelly McMullen, City Treasurer 

Date: July 29, 2021 

Subject: Approval of Resolution Authorizing and Approving Financing through 
Lease/Purchase and Award of Lease/Purchase Contract – Public Safety and 
Administrative Vehicles, as Approved by Council in the 2021-2022 Budget 

Issue 

Approval of a Resolution authorizing and approving financing through a Lease/Purchase and awarding of 
the Lease/Purchase Contract to a Financial Institution for Eight (8) Public Safety Vehicles and One (1) 
City Administrative Vehicle. 

Discussion 

The Public Safety and City Administrative vehicles were approved for purchase by Council in the 2021-
2022 Fiscal Budget.  The total value and thus financing for all vehicles and equipment will total 
$429,034. 

Staff contacted 18 financial institutions and requested lease purchase financing proposals for the 
vehicles and equipment based on the purchase price.  The City received three (3) responses. 

First Citizens Bank: three (3) years at 1.16% fixed or four (4) years at 1.34% fixed  

United Bank: three (3) years at 0.99% fixed or four (4) years at 1.24% fixed 

US Bank: three (3) years at 1.311% fixed or four (4) years at 1.454% fixed  

If the City of Cayce approves the United Bank quote, annual payments (with no down payment) would 
be as follows: 

$145,205 annually for 3 Years at 0.99% (total interest paid $6,581) 

$109,996 annually for 4 Years at 1.24% (total interest paid $10,950) 

The payments shall be monthly in arrears. Funding of $61,060.00 (for six (6) months of lease payments) 
is included in the FY 2021-2022 General Fund budget and will be included in successive years.  Expected 
annual payments for an entire fiscal year was estimated at $122,120. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the lease/purchase contract be awarded to United Bank for a four (4) year term 
contract at 1.24% with annual payments in arrears of $109,996 for principal and interest.  Staff also 
recommends that Council approve a “Resolution Approving Financing” through United Bank (attached) 
and that the City Manager be authorized to execute the contract documents. 

ITEM III. C. 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) RESOLUTION 
) 

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) APPROVING FINANCING TERMS 
) FOR GENERAL FUND  

CITY OF CAYCE ) PUBLIC SAFETY AND CITY 
ADMINISTRATIVE VEHICLES 

LEASE PURCHASE 

WHEREAS, the City of Cayce (“City”) has previously determined to 
undertake a project for the financing of eight (8) Public Safety Vehicles and one 
(1) City Administrative Vehicle for The General Fund Lease Purchases (“the
Project”), and the Finance Officer has now presented a proposal for the financing
of such Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the 
City of Cayce, in Council, duly assembled, that:   

1. The City hereby determines to finance the Project through United
Bank, in accordance with the proposal dated July 15, 2021.  The amount 
financed shall not exceed $429,034, the annual interest rate (in the absence of 
default or change in tax status) shall not exceed 1.24%, and the term shall not 
exceed four (4) years. 

2. All financing contracts and all related documents for the closing of
the financing (the “Financial Documents”) shall be consistent with the foregoing 
terms.  All officers and employees of the City are hereby authorized and directed 
to execute and deliver any Financing Documents, and to take all such further 
action as they may consider necessary or desirable, to carry out the financing of 
the Project as contemplated by the proposal and this resolution.  The Financing 
Documents shall include a Financing Agreement and an Escrow Agreement as 
United Bank may request. 

3. The Finance Officer is hereby authorized and directed to hold
executed copies of the Financing Documents until the conditions for the delivery 
of the Financing Documents have been completed to such officer’s satisfaction.  
The Financing Officer is authorized to approve changes to any Financing 
Documents previously signed by City officers or employees, provided that such 
changes shall not substantially alter the intent of such documents or certificates 
from the intent expressed in the forms executed by such officers.  The Financing 
Documents shall be in such final forms as the Finance Officer shall approve, with 
the Finance Officer’s release of any Financing Document for delivery constituting 
conclusive evidence of such officer’s final approval of the Document’s final form. 

ITEM III. C. 



 4. The City shall not take or omit to take any action the taking or 
omission of which shall cause its interest payments on this financing to be 
includable in the gross income for federal income tax purposes of the registered 
owners of the interest payment obligations.  The City hereby designates its 
obligations to make principal and interest payments under the Financing 
Documents as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for the purpose of Internal 
Revenue Code Section 265 (b)(3). 
 
 
            5.         The City intends that the adoption of this resolution will be a 
declaration of the City’s official intent to reimburse expenditures for the project 
that is to be financed from the proceeds of the United Bank financing described 
above.  The City intends that funds that have been advanced, or that may be 
advanced, from the City’s general fund or any other City fund related to the 
project, for project costs may be reimbursed from the financing proceeds. 
 
            6.          All prior actions of City officers in furtherance of the purposes of 
this resolution are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.  All other resolutions 
(or parts thereof) in conflict with this resolution are hereby repealed, to the extent 
of the conflict.  This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
 
 APPROVED this 3rd day of August, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Elise Partin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Mendy C. Corder, Municipal Clerk 



Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council 

From: Tracy Hegler, City Manager 

Date: July 29, 2021 

Subject: Bid Award – Professional Auditing Services 

Issue 

Council approval is needed in order to accept the proposal from Mauldin & Jenkins Certified Public 
Accountants for the City’s professional auditing services and to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute a contract between the City of Cayce and Mauldin & Jenkins.   

Discussion 

As part of the City’s efforts to update contracts and ensure best practices for procurement of services and 
competitiveness, the City issued an RFP for professional auditing services.  Due to the distinctive nature 
of the City’s services within our local region, staff detailed the RFP so that qualified vendors would 
understand the overall complexity of our water and sewer utilities and its impact on general fund 
operations. 

The City issued the RFP for Professional Auditing Services on June 4, 2021 and received proposals from four 
(4) firms.  At their initial meeting, the RFP Committee chose to request additional information from the
following two (2) top firms in lieu of a formal interview process.  Those top two (2) firms and their fees are:

Mauldin & Jenkins CPAs  $64,500 
Robert E. Milhous CPA  $81,000 

After being provided with the additional information requested, the RFP Committee scored all responding 
firms based on the following criteria: 

Responsiveness to the City’s RFP Requirements 
Scope and Extent of Services Offered 
Experience of Auditor and Individuals Assigned to the City’s Municipal and Utility Engagements 
Cost of Services Proposed  

City staff then contacted similar clients of the top auditing firm whose proposal provided the best 
combination of these core criteria.  After the conclusion of internal discussions and scoring, staff is 
recommending that the City award its Professional Auditing Services to Mauldin & Jenkins Certified Public 
Accountants.   

Recommendation 

Staff recommends Council approve the proposal from Mauldin & Jenkins Certified Public Accountants and 
authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract, not to exceed $65,000, between the City 
of Cayce and Mauldin & Jenkins. This recommendation offers the best combination of competitive costs 
and exceptional services. 

ITEM IV. A. 



Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council 

From: Tracy Hegler, City Manager 

Date: July 27, 2021 

Subject: Bid Award – Public Safety Fire Ladder Truck 

Issue 

Council approval is needed in order to accept the proposal from Safe Industries for the purchase of a new Public Safety 
Fire Ladder Truck and to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract between the City of Cayce and 
Safe Industries. 

Discussion 

In November 2019, the City of Cayce applied for a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) for a Fire Ladder 
Apparatus. In September 2020, the City was awarded $600,000 in CDBG funds from Lexington County for this purchase.  
Subsequently, an RFP was issued by the City for the purchase of a Fire Ladder in May 2021.  The RFP was advertised on a 
dedicated City webpage and was also made available on the South Carolina Business Opportunities (SCBO) portal.  The 
City received the following two (2) proposals: 

Safe Industries/E-One  $1,415,000 
Phoenix Fire/Rosenbauer $1,105,671 

The Phoenix Fire proposal did not properly follow the City’s RFP instructions and was overall unclear.  The RFP 
Committee could not determine if their proposed apparatus would fit our fire house bay, which was detailed in our 
specifications.  Also, the proposed list price of $1,105,671 was not inclusive of all the specifications we requested, and 
which were included in Safe Industries’ price.  Because of this, and after consultation with Lexington County 
Procurement, the RFP Committee determined the Phoenix Fire proposal to be “unresponsive” and, therefore, scored 
only Safe Industries based on the following criteria: 

Responsiveness to the City’s Needs / Technical Specifications and Quality 
Experience, Reputation and Resources of the Vendor 
Quality and Location of Service/Repair Facility 
Cost  

City staff also submitted questions to the vendor in lieu of a formal interview in order clarify whether the proposal 
provided the best combination of these core criteria.  After the conclusion of external communications, internal 
discussions and scoring, staff is recommending that the City award the Public Safety Fire Ladder to Safe Industries. 
Funding for the ladder truck includes a combination of CDBG grant award and other reimbursements, leaving a 
remaining balance of $125,304.00. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends Council approve the proposal from Safe Industries and authorize the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute a contract between the City of Cayce and Safe Industries.  Further, staff recommends the balance of not to 
exceed $125,304.00, if necessary after contract negotiations, be funded by the General Fund Reserves. This 
recommendation offers the best combination of competitive costs and suitable equipment necessary to meet the needs 
of the City. 

ITEM IV. B. 



Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council 

From: Tracy Hegler, City Manager 

Date: July 27, 2021 

Subject: Synovus Bank – Approval to Enter into Purchasing Card Agreement 

Issue 

Council approval is needed in order to authorize the City Manager to enter into a Purchasing Card 
Agreement with Synovus Bank for the City’s general credit card services and future Purchasing Card 
services.   

Discussion 

At the February 17, 2021 meeting, Council approved staff’s recommendation to award the City’s banking 
services to Synovus Bank.  As part of this award, the City Finance Office needs to transition its current 
credit card program for city staff from BB&T to Synovus Bank. 

The Purchasing Card platform available through Synovus Bank will also aid in the City’s technological 
growth by allowing the addition of an Accounts Payable (AP) Solutions product, where vendor payments 
can be made by the City via credit card and Automated Clearing House (ACH).  This future AP Solutions 
service will also earn monetary annual rebates.   

The City currently has a combined credit limit for all purchasing cards with BB&T totaling $45,000.  
Currently, City staff is seeking approval from Council to transition the City’s current credit card accounts 
from BB&T to Synovus.   

Synovus Bank requires this action of Council, separate from the approval of their agreement. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends Council approve the City Manager entering into the purchasing card agreement with 
Synovus Bank and authorize the City Treasurer to act as Administrator to the program.  Staff also 
recommends Council approve a combined credit limit of $45,000 for the Purchasing Card and AP 
Solutions products from Synovus.  

ITEM IV. C. 



ITEM VI. A. 





1 Cayce Housing Authority Board Minutes – Regular Board Meeting April 13, 2021 

Minutes for April 13, 2021, Regular Board Meeting 
of the Housing Authority of the City of Cayce, SC 

The Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Cayce, SC held its Regular Board Meeting on Tuesday, 
April 13, 2021, virtually via video conference. 

Chairman Jack Sightler called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.  A copy of the agenda was posted on the Housing Authority’s 
website.  Roll call was conducted, and the following members of the Board were present:  

CH Board Members Columbia Housing Authority 
Staff Present 

Chairman Jack Sightler Present Ivory Mathews, Chief Executive Officer 
Vice-Chairman Bruce Smith Present Yvonda Bean, Chief Operating Officer 
Commissioner Silvia Sullivan Absent Cindi Herrera, SVP Development 
Commissioner Cheryl Seymour Present Marissa Phoenix, Chief Financial Officer 
Commissioner Johnetta Riley Present Lee McRoberts, Executive Assistant 

Ms. Sullivan was unable to attend due to a scheduling conflict. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

Mr. Sightler called for approval of the minutes for the Regular Meeting held February 16, 2021.  Upon motion of Mr. Smith, 
seconded by Ms. Seymour the minutes were unanimously approved. 

Board Member Aye Nay Absent 
Chairman Jack Sightler X 
Vice-Chairman  Bruce Smith X 
Commissioner  Silvia Sullivan X 
Commissioner  Cheryl Seymour X 
Commissioner  Johnetta Riley X 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S UPDATE: 

Mrs. Mathews stated that the Public Hearing to review the Cayce Housing Annual Plan was held on April 6, 2021 and was 
well attended. Mrs. Mathews asked Mrs. Bean and Mrs. Herrera to present the Annual Plan to the Board, 

Mrs. Bean presented Columbia Housing’s Annual Plan and outlined the agency’s Strategic Goals.  The timeline presented 
outlines the key dates for the Annual Plan. 

ACTIVITIES TIMELINE 
Public Comment Period 2/19/2021-4/5/2021 

Resident Advisory Board Meeting 3/31/2021 
Public Hearing 4/6/2021 
Board Meeting 4/13/2021 

Due Date 4/16/2021 
Fiscal Year Begins 7/1/2021 

ITEM VI. A. 



2 Cayce Housing Authority Board Minutes – Regular Board Meeting April 13, 2021 
  
 

 

 
STRATEGIC GOALS: 
 

1. Increase availability of quality, affordable housing by improving the quality of assisted housing. 
• Objective: Continue public housing high performing status, with the public housing assessment strategy of ninety 

percent (90%) or greater. 
• Objective: Maintain the public housing vacancies at a rate of two percent (2%) or less. 

 
PROGRESS: 
 
Cayce is a High Performing Agency, receiving 95 points out of 100% possible points on its Public Housing Assessment 
System (PHAS) Report. It’s HUD’s assessment of how well the agency; maintains its properties, manages its fiscal 
responsibilities, manages its properties and utilizes its Capital Fund dollars received. The current occupancy rate is 97.6%. 
There is one vacancy. 
 

2. Promote self-sufficiency in assessment development of families and individuals. 
• Objective: Increase the percentage of employed person in assisted housing. 

 
PROGRESS: 
 
Established a plethora of economic and self-sufficiency opportunities for residents, by enlisting community partners and 
leveraging subject matter experts to deliver a COVID-19 friendly series of virtual workshops that foster economic 
independence and self-sufficiency. The series consists of monthly online sessions in the areas of: Career 
Development/Employment, Self-Sufficiency,Health & Safety,Technology,Youth and Seniors. 
 

3. Ensure Equal Opportunity in providing Fair Housing for all. 
• Objective: Continue affirmative measures that will facilitate access to suitable living environment regardless of 

race, color, national origin, religion, sex familial status and disability. 
• Objective: Continue affirmative measures that will prove acceptable for persons with disabilities regardless of the 

unit size required. 
 
PROGRESS: 
 
We review our policies annual, adjusting and/or making updates where necessary to ensure we are always affirmatively 
furthering fair housing and operating in compliance with Fair Housing requirements. 
 

4. Convert forty-one (41) public housing units to project-based vouchers. 
• Objective: Convert and close out the Section 9 program. 

 
PROGRESS: 
 

 
 
CH Staff is currently working with the architect to revise rehabilitation costs as original estimates came back higher than 
available resources for the initial scope work submitted.  The scope of work will not change at the Spencer Place units but 
will be scaled back at the remaining communities.  Work is hoped to be under contract by June with completion of all 
rehabilitation by year’s end.  The RAD conversion would take place under Section 18 guidelines in early 2022. Plans are 
also being developed to place 6 – 9 new units on the vacant land at Spencer Place. 



3 Cayce Housing Authority Board Minutes – Regular Board Meeting April 13, 2021 
  
 

 

Mr. Sightler asked if Spencer Place could be designated as a senior property as it has historically housed seniors.  Mrs. 
Herrera said that staff is currently working with HUD based on the Board’s and RAB feedback to obtain a partial 
designation for the Spencer Place units.  Staff is also working with the architect to redesign the new units with seniors in 
mind, those will be presented to the Board at the next meeting.   
 
Mrs. Riley asked what tools the measurement criteria will be used to measure progress on goals 2 and 3 in the Annual 
Plan.  Mrs. Bean stated that staff use a variety of HUD supplied tracing tools to measure progress in the Resident and 
Family Services department, individual goals are monitored by the resident’s case manager.  Mrs. Riley asked that some 
analytics be included to show results, Mrs. Bean said that she can add the number of Cayce families enrolled in ongoing 
Resident and Family Services programming. 
 
Mr. Sightler called for a motion to approve Resolution 2021-002: Approval of Annual Plan.  Upon motion of Mr. Sightler, 
seconded by Mr. Smith, it was approved. 
 

Board Member Aye Nay Absent 
Chairman Jack Sightler X   
Vice-Chairman  Bruce Smith X   
Commissioner  Silvia Sullivan   X 
Commissioner  Cheryl Seymour X   
Commissioner  Johnetta Riley X    

 
 
OPERATIONS REPORT: 
 
Mrs. Hilton presented the Operations Report: 
        February   March                      April              

Accounts sent to Magistrate        0             0              0 

Account more than 30 days           4          3            3      

Work Orders received        22               28                  5          

Work Orders Completed       22          25                      2 

Work Orders Remaining       0          3                      3     

Emergency Work Order       5         4                       1                               

Mrs. Riley asked if the accounts over 30 days old are the same people from the previous report.  Mrs. Hilton stated that 
they are carryover, staff has been able to work with one of the outstanding accounts to resolve the balance but has not 
been able to establish a plan with the remaining households.  Mr. Sightler asked what the process will be when the 
eviction moratorium is up at the end of June.  Mrs. Hilton said that staff has been documenting the situations and will 
move forward with eviction proceedings at the appropriate time if needed.   
 
Mrs. Riley asked if the residents with outstanding balances can utilize any of the assistance currently available.  Mrs. 
Hilton said that staff has provided the families with information for resources available to individuals impacted by the 
pandemic, these individuals have been unable to provide the required documentation to receive assistance.  Mrs. Mathews 
added that most CH residents are ineligible for these programs because they are already receiving assistance as residents 
of Cayce Housing. 
 
CFO, Marissa Phoenix, presented the  year to date financial report.  Cayce Housing has generated $187,711 in revenue 
year to date with expenses of $145,752 leaving a cash flow of $35,959. 
 



4 Cayce Housing Authority Board Minutes – Regular Board Meeting April 13, 2021 
  
 

 

 
OTHER ITEMS: 
 
Mrs. Herrera gave an update on the Bond Issuance for Abbot Arms.  The buyer’s counsel is currently working with the 
City of Cayce to determine who will hold the TEFRA hearing, once the TEFRA hearing is complete, the City of Cayce 
will approve the bond issuance and the Mayor signs off to proceed.  Staff anticipates that the TEFRA hearing should be 
scheduled within the next 8 weeks, closing will occur by summer’s end and construction should begin by the end of the 
year.  Staff will keep the Board updated as the processes moves forward. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business and upon motion of Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Sightler, it was unanimously approved to 
end the meeting at 5:40 pm. 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Ivory N. Mathews 
Secretary/Executive Director 



ITEM VI. A. 





CITY OF CAYCE 
EVENTS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

City Council Chambers 
June 10, 2021 

Present:  Danny Creamer, Maxine Creamer, Dave Capps, Dwede Dennis, Cindy Pedersen, Johnathan Palance, 
Robert Cathcart 

Absent:  Johnathon Moore, Alexis Moore, Brianne Siciliano, Evony Reed 

City Representative:  Amanda Rowan 

Review of Minutes: May 13, 2021 

Chairperson Danny Creamer called the meeting to order.  Dave Capps made a motion to approve the minutes as 
written and Johnathan Palance seconded.  Minutes were unanimously approved.  Danny reminded the 
committee the meeting was being recorded.  

Fall Fest: 

Danny asked the subcommittees for the reports on the progress of their preparation for the Fall Fest. Dave gave 
the following status on entertainment: Mystic Vibrations has been confirmed, Duncan Sims has also confirmed 
and this leaves one opening for a band.  Danny spoke with George Fulton who has expressed interest and 
availability.  Johnathan suggested a few bands he has worked with in the past: Reggie Sullivan, Mark Rat, 
Robert Gardner, and the Soda City Brass Band. Maxine stated the Brass Band sounded interesting. Other 
members agreed. Johnathan offered to reach out to them via text during the meeting to check availability. Dave 
went over the set times for each band. There was a discussion on the order in which the bands should play.  The 
committee agreed to begin with the Jazz Band if used, then have Duncan Sims perform, and finally Mystic 
Vibrations. Sound services have previously been provided by Bruce Crouch, but he is unavailable this year due 
to a Carolina Football Game.  Johnathan suggested Matt Buck from “The Warehouse,” and offered to reach out 
to him. Danny has requested the City reach out to ACS regarding the stage rental and look into the dance floor 
rental.  The committee then discussed the DJ.  Dave stated he would like a DJ who is more interactive with the 
crowd and will announce the bands.  He would also like the DJ set up and playing music during the set-up of 
the event (around 11:00 am) to draw crowds in. Dave will reach out to DJ Preach (suggested by Brie), Cameron 
Glover, and Gabe Gilbert (recommended by Johnathan) regarding prices and availability.  Dave asked what 
should be done with the music groups after being picked by the group. Amanda requested they be sent to the 
City so contracts can be sent out. With entertainment being handled the committee moved to vendors. 

Dave asked if vendors would be required to provide generators.  Danny stated in the past the City had power 
available. Amanda went over the list of past vendors.  The City will begin contacting past vendors to see if they 
are interested or available for the Fall Fest. Danny requested the City verify if the ASCAP and BMI fees have 
been paid.  Amanda stated she remembered paying ASCAP after Christmas but will verify. 

ITEM VI. A. 



Carols on the Riverwalk:  
 
The committee is planning for the Caroling event to take place on Friday, December 3, 2021. Amanda provided 
a list of past carolers. Danny asked if the City could reach out to the past carolers to see if they would like to be 
involved again. Dave would like to keep Bobby at the high school to engage families. Cindy asked if the City 
still had the photo backdrop.  Amanda stated she would have to research that. Cindy requested candles be 
checked prior to the night of the event to ensure they are all working.  
 
 
Danny reminded the committee the next meeting would be held July 8th.  Robert made a motion to adjourn, 
Maxine seconded.  The meeting was adjourned.  



City of Cayce 
Committee Reappointments 

August 3, 2021

All open positions will be advertised on the City’s website and Facebook page. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 

STANDARD TECHNICAL CODES BOARD OF APPEALS – TWO (2) POSITIONS 
Mr. William Michael Sexton’s term on the Standard Technical Codes Board of Appeals expired in May 
and he would like to serve again.  Mr. Craig Kirby’s term on the Board expires in August and he would 
like to serve again.  Their reappointment applications are attached for Council’s review.    

NO COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 
The following positions have been postponed by Council until receipt of potential member 
applications. 

ACCOMMODATIONS TAX COMMITTEE – ONE (1) POSITION 
This Committee determines where state accommodations tax funds received will be spent to promote 
tourism.  This position needs to be filled by someone that works in the hotel industry in the City.     

BEAUTIFICATION FOUNDATION – ONE (1) POSITION 
This Foundation is a 501c3 non-profit organization that works to raise money for various beautification 
projects in the City of Cayce.  There are no recommendations at this time.      

PUBLIC SAFETY FOUNDATION – TWO (2) POSITIONS 
This Foundation is a 501(c) (3) organization that raises funds to provide the members of Cayce Public 
Safety with equipment and resources to make their jobs and the community safer.  There are no 
recommendations at this time.     

STANDARD TECHNICAL CODES BOARD OF APPEALS – THREE (3) POSITIONS 
Reviews citizen appeals to ensure building codes, property maintenance codes and fire codes 
are properly interpreted and implemented fairly.  Members who serve on this Board must be 
either an Engineer, Contractor, Architect or Design Professional. There are no 
recommendations at this time. 

ITEM VI. B. 



CITY OF CAYCE 

COMMITTEE MEMBER REAPPOINTMENT APPLICATION 

Name: _Craig Kirby______________________________________________________________ 

Home Address: _ Bostwick Ridge__________  City, State, Zip _Columbia, SC 29229________ 

Telephone: _803-____________ E-Mail Address _                                     ______________ 

Resident of Cayce:     Yes     No     Number of Years  ______________

Please check the Committee for which you are applying for reappointment:  

 Accommodations Tax Committee  Beautification Board  Event Committee

 Cayce Housing Authority  Museum Commission  Planning Commission

 Consolidated Board of Appeals  Board of Zoning Appeals

Have you ever been convicted of a felony or misdemeanor other than a minor traffic 

violation?     Yes        No If yes, specify below:

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Work Address 

Company:  _American Engineering Consultants, Inc._  Position _Project Manager____________ 

Address: _1300 12
th

 Street  _______________________________________________________ 

City, State, Zip _Cayce, SC 29033 _____________ Telephone: _803-791-1400_______________ 

Fax: __803-791-8110____________________   E-Mail  __ckirby@aec-sc.com_______________ 

Work Experience: _American Engineering Consultants, Inc.  (24 Years)____________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Educational Background:  _B.S. Civil Engineering (Univ. of South Carolina – 1995); Master of 

Engineering (Univ. of South Carolina – 1997)                    ________________________________ 

Membership Information (Professional, Neighborhood and/or Civic Organizations): 

Water Environment Association of S.C.;   American Society of Civil Engineers   ______________ 

Volunteer Work: _N.E. Presbyterian Church – Usher Team;  Adopt  A Highway (Charleston 

Highway – Cayce); City of Cayce Consolidated Board of Appeals                      ________________ 

Hobbies: _Running; Playing Golf; Spending Time At The Beach     _________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Return to: 

Mendy Corder, Municipal Clerk 

City of Cayce, P.O. Box 2004, Cayce, SC 29171-2004 

Telephone: 803-550-9557  Fax: 803-796-9072  mcorder@cityofcayce-sc.gov

✔

✔

ITEM VI. B. 



CITY OF CAYCE 
COMMITTEE MEMBER REAPPOINTMENT APPLICATION 

Name: William Michael Sexton____________________________________________________________ 

Home Address:  Tufton Court_____________  City, State, Zip Cayce, SC, 29033__________________   

Telephone: _____________ E-Mail Address __________   

Resident of Cayce:    { Yes    { No     Number of Years  26__________________________________  

Please check the Committee for which you are applying for reappointment:  

{ Accommodations Tax Committee    { Beautification Board { Event Committee 
{ Cayce Housing Authority    { Museum Commission { Planning Commission 
{ Consolidated Board of Appeals           { Board of Zoning Appeals 

Have you ever been convicted of a felony or misdemeanor other than a minor traffic violation?  
  Yes        No If yes, specify below: 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Work Address 

Company:  Buford Goff & Associates, Inc. (BGA)___  Position Mechanical Engineer__________________ 

Address: 1331 Elmwood Avenue, Suite 200__________________________________________________ 

City, State, Zip Columbia, SC, 29201____________ Telephone: 803-254-6302_______________________ 

Fax: N/A_______________________________   E-Mail  michael.sexton@bgainc.com________________ 

Work Experience: 4 years full-time at BGA post-college; various prior part-time employment._________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Educational Background:  University of South Carolina, B.S.E. in Mechanical Engineering, 2017;________ 

Brookland-Cayce High School, High School Diploma, 2013.______________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Membership Information (Professional, Neighborhood and/or Civic Organizations): 

Registered in the State of South Carolina as a licensed professional engineer; member of the Columbia__ 

chapter of the American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers_____________ 

(ASHRAE)._____________________________________________________________________________ 

Volunteer Work: Member of the Concord Park (Cayce) Neighborhood Common Area Committee.______ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Hobbies: Bicycling, racquetball, genealogy.__________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Return to: 
Mendy Corder, Municipal Clerk 

City of Cayce, P.O. Box 2004, Cayce, SC 29171-2004 
Telephone: 803-550-9557  Fax: 803-796-9072 ▪ mcorder@cityofcayce-sc.gov 

ITEM VI. B. 


	Agenda
	Item I. B. - July 14, 2021 Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	Item III. A. - White Paper 1204 Knox Abbott Rezoning
	Item III. A. - Ordinance Rezoning 1204 Knox Abbott MA003-21
	Item III. A. - Map MA003-21 Existing Zoning
	Item III. A. - Map Land Use
	Item III. A. - Cook Out Zoning Letter
	Item III. B. - Resolution-Election Open for Filing
	Item III. B. - Election - 2021 Public Notice
	Item III. B. - Election Deadlines 2021
	Item III. C. - White Paper Lease Purchase
	Item III. C. - Resolution Approving Financing Terms
	Item IV. A. - White Paper Auditing Services
	Item IV. B. - White Paper Fire Ladder
	Item IV. C. - White Paper Purchasing Card Program
	Item VI. A. - Museum Commission April 7, 2021 Minutes
	Item VI. A. - Cayce Housing Authority April 13, 2021 Minutes
	Item VI. A. - Museum Commission May 5, 2021 Minutes
	Item VI. A. - Events Committee June 10, 2021 Minutes
	Item VI. B. - Appts and Reappts
	Item VI. B. - Reappointment Application - Kirby
	Item VI. B. - Reappointment Application - Sexton



